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on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

AARON FRIEDMAN, on behalf of himself
and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
V.

APPLE, INC., a California Corporation;
AT&T Mobility, LLC, a Delaware
Corporation, and DOES 1 through 10,
inclusive,

Defendants.

CASE NO.'0CV2403 JLS POR

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR
DAMAGES, INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND

RESTITUTION

1. Negligence

2. Negligence Misrepresentation
3. Fraud and Deceit

4. Unlawful Business Practice in

Violation of Bus. & Prof. Code

§ 17200, et seq.
5. False and Misleading

Advertising in Violation of
California Bus. & Prof. Code §

17500, et seq.
JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff AARON FRIEDMAN, on behalf of himself and all others similarly
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situated, based on the investigation of counsel, the existing public record and on
information and belief, alleges as follows:

FACTUAL BASIS

1. Defendants Apple, Inc. (hereinafter "Apple") and AT&T Mobility, LLC
(hereinafter "ATTM") represented to the general public that purchasers of the iPad WiFi
+ 3G (hereinafter "iPad 3G") would be able to switch between limited data plans and
unlimited data plans whenever they wanted. This, however, was a misrepresentation.
As of June 7, 2010, just a little over 30 days after the iPad 3G was first sold by
Defendants, Apple and ATTM discontinued the availability of the unlimited data plan
indefinitely.

2. On April 30, 2010, Defendant Apple began selling the iPad 3G. The iPad
3G differs from the prior iteration of the iPad because the iPad 3G can access the
internet via the ATTM 3G network. The iPad 3Gs cost $130 more (before taxes) than
the iPad without 3G accessibility. This price difference holds true regardless of whether
consumers purchase the 16GB, the 32GB or the 64GB models. Plaintiff Aaron
Friedman purchased an iPad 3G 16GB.

3. The key difference between the prior iPad and the more expensive iPad
3G is that the iPad 3G is able to access the internet through the ATTM 3G network.
The ability to use the iPad 3G to access the 3G network will be referred to throughout
this complaint as the "3G feature" of the iPad 3G.

4. Unlike the 2 year contract plans offered with the popular and well-known
iPhone brands, Apple and ATTM advertised the IPad 3G plans as being "No- contract
3G service.” This meant that instead of being locked into a 2 year agreement, like with
the iPhone products, Apple and ATTM were allowing customers to pay for the
subscription on a month-to-month basis with no yearly agreements. Customers were
expressly offered flexibility with the iPad 3G, to switch between a limited and unlimited
data coverage on a month-to-month basis.

5. Apple and ATTM advertised that customers would be able to switch plans
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as they needed, so that they could enjoy the flexibility of paying for what they needed.
Apple advertised and warranted on their website: "You sign up for 3G service right on
your iPad. And you can monitor your data usage and change your plan at any time,
including switching to unlimited data or cancelling 3G service if you know you won't
need it...As you get close to your monthly data limit, you'll receive onscreen messages
to help you decide whether to upgrade to another 250MB or switch to the unlimited

plan." http://store.apple.com/us/browse/home/shop_ipad/family/ipad (available for

access 6/3/10) (Emphasis added).

6. From April 30, 2010 until June 7, 2010, Defendants offered prospective
purchasers of the 3G-capable iPads two data plans: 1) the 250 MB of data for $14.99
per month, with additional data in 250 MB increments for an added charge or 2)
unlimited 3G data for $29.99 per month.

7. In addition to the higher price tag on the iPad 3G, customers were
required to purchase service through ATTM in order to use the 3G feature.

8. On June 2, 2010,: AT&T published a press release advertising the new
limited AT&T plan and the termination of the unlimited 3G data plan of $29.99 quoted in
pertinent part:

For new iPad customers, the $25 per month 2 GB plan will
replace the existing $29.99 unlimited plan. iPad customers
will continue to pre-pay for their wireless data plan and no
contract is required. Existing iPad customers who have the
$29.99 per month unlimited plan can keep that plan or
switch to the new $25 per month plan with 2 GB of
data...."The new wireless data plans — including a new
tethering option — will be available beginning June 7."
http://www.att.com/gen/pressroom?pid=17991&cdvn=news&
newsarticleid=30854&mapcode=financial|Wireless
(Accessed August 3, 2010)

9. On June 7, 2010, the iPhone 4 was officially announced. On this same
day, Apple and ATTM ceased offering the unlimited data plans for the iPad 3G.

10.  Even before the introduction of the iPhone 4 to the general market,
Defendants knew that the ATTM network was already over-taxed by 3G usage with the

existing iPhone 3G and 3GS. The iPhones that used the 3G networks had been
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described as:

It's a data guzzler. Owners use them like minicomputers,
which they are, and use them a lot. Not only do iPhone
owners download applications, stream music and videos and
browse the Web at higher rates than the average
smartphone user, but the average iPhone owner can also
use 10 times the network capacity used by the average
smartphone user. Jenna Worthan, Customers Angered as
iPhones Overload AT&T, N.Y. Times, Sept. 3, 2009, at
http://www.nytimes.com/2009/09/03/technology/companies/O
3att.html (last visited Oct. 20, 2009)

11.  And yet, despite Apple and ATTM'’s knowledge that their network was
already oversold by existing iPhone users, they marketed and sold the iPad 3G, a
minicomputer with unlimited 3G access to the same network that was already
exhausted.

12.  Apple and ATTM knew at the time that they could not sustain sales of
unlimited 3G access on the iPad 3G, yet began to market the unlimited data plans for
the unreleased iPad 3G as early as January 27, 2010.

13.  Apple and ATTM advertised the iPad 3G with unlimited data plans to
accelerate sales of the iPad 3G. Given the substantial problems with bandwidth usage
in with other launches of the iPhone, with the iPhone 4 launch just over 30 days away,
Apple and ATTM knew that the ATTM 3G network would be hit hard with new
subscribers and that they would likely have to curb data usage.

14.  In response to the mounting criticism of the iPhones on the ATTM 3G
network, in a Fortune magazine article in September 2009, ATTM admitted that the:
"3G networks were not designed effectively for this kind of usage," says John Donovan,
AT&T'’s chief technology officer, referring to the current generation of broadband
wireless. "We fight the day-to-day guerrilla warfare as the customers move around."
John Fortt, "Bandwidth Hogs — iPhone and Other Smartphones," FORTUNE:
Brainstorm TechBlog, Aug. 28, 2009, at

http://brainstormtech.blogs.fortune.cnn.com/2009/08/28/bandwidthhogs-iphone-and-

other-smartphones/ (last visited Oct. 19, 2009). (emphasis added) And yet, only 4
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months later, ATTM and Apple were advertising yet another 3G intensive device, iPad
3G, with unlimited data access.

15.  Apple needed to make sure that the AT&T network would be able to
handle the vast array of future iPhone 4 purchasers. Thus, in order for the network to
be able to accommodate future iPhone 4 users, iPad 3G users, and other AT&T
subscribers, the unlimited data plans were eliminated.

16. Defendants engaged in a massive marketing campaign to encourage
consumers to purchase the iPad 3G with the promise of data flexibility, but hardly
advertised the cessation of that unlimited data plan. The unlimited data plan was
offered for only approximately 30 days before Defendants terminated the option for the
unlimited data plan. Defendants knew that the unlimited data plan was only a limited
time offer and lured hundreds of thousands of customers to purchase the iPad 3G.
Defendants knew that they were going to end the unlimited data plan once the iPhone 4
released, but only warned customers of the impeding termination of the unlimited data
plan on June 2, 2010, just 5 days before the termination.

17.  As a result of this "bait and switch" scheme between the defendants,
Apple and ATTM realized millions of dollars of profits from selling the iPad 3G with
unlimited data access. Their intent was to induce consumers to purchase an iPad 3G,
which as advertised is an extremely data intensive device for browsing the web,
downloading books, steaming audio and streaming video. Defendants knew that in
order to successfully market the new device, they would have to offer an unlimited 3G
data plan, otherwise the initial success of the device would be in jeopardy. Apple and
ATTM advertised the availability of the unlimited data plans for the iPad 3G for
approximately 5 months. However, they had no intention of continuing the unlimited
data plans once they gained a significant market share of the tablet computer industry
with the iPad 3G. Apple and ATTM only actually sold the unlimited data plans for a little
over 30 days, after 5 months of marketing and selling hundreds of thousands of iPad

3Gs.
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18.  As a result of this "bait and switch" scheme between the defendants
customers who had limited data plans as of June 7, 2010, can never take advantage of
the unlimited data plan that they were promised would be available to them when the
purchased the iPad 3G.

19.  Even people who are grandfathered into the unlimited data plan (because
the purchased the plan and have retained it since June 7, 2010) are unable to realize
the benefit of the "flexible" data plans, since it is now impossible for them to switch back
to the pre-paid limited plan and then back to the unlimited plan, as promised.

20.  As a result of eliminating the unlimited data plans and flexibility that had
been promised to people who purchased the iPad 3G ("And you can monitor your data
usage and change your plan at any time, including switching to unlimited data...",
supra), it is now impossible for customers to take advantage of the benefits of switching
between pre-paid and unlimited data plans.

21.  In addition, the iPad 3G was marketed to Plaintiff to use the device for
streaming video, streaming audio, internet browsing and book downloading, all of which
consume a great deal of bandwidth. By eliminating the option for the unlimited data
plan, plaintiff will not be able to use the iPad 3G to download and stream unlimited
movies, television shows and music, as was marketed to him, since he now has a
monthly cap of how much data he can use without having to give more money to Apple
and ATTM for additional data.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

22. The damages suffered and sought to be recovered by Plaintiff and the
Class that she seeks to represent is, in the aggregate, in excess of the jurisdictional
minimum of this Court. The exact amount of damages caused to the Class members
cannot be precisely determined without access to Defendants’ records.

23. This Court has jurisdiction over the consolidated proceedings that are the
subject of this Complaint under the Class Action Fairness Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1332(d),

since the amount in controversy is over $5 million and since ATTM is a citizen of
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Delaware and Plaintiff is a citizen of California.

24.  The Court has Supplemental Jurisdiction over all other causes of action
within this Complaint, pursuant to 28 U.S.C § 1376(a).

25.  Venue is proper in this Court since the Defendant Apple, Inc. is a resident
of this County. Also, thousands of class members and a portion of the overall Class,
certain liability of the Defendants arose in this County, certain contracts were entered
into here, were to be performed here and were breached here.

26.  This Court also has jurisdiction over each Defendant named herein
because each Defendant is either a corporation or an association organized under the
laws of the State of California, a foreign corporation or association authorized to do
business in California and registered with the California Secretary of State, or does
sufficient business, has sufficient minimum contacts with California, or otherwise
intentionally avails itself of the California market, through the promotion, marketing,
advertising of employment positions for delivery drivers and/or sell their products in
California, to render the exercise of jurisdiction by the California courts permissible
under traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.

THE PARTIES

27. Plaintiff, Aaron Friedman, is, and at all material times was, a resident of
San Diego County, California. Plaintiff sues on behalf of himself, all others similarly
situated. On May 29, 2010 Plaintiff purchased an iPad Wi-Fi + 3G 16GB, which was
advertised, distributed, and/or sold, by Defendant Apple and ATTM as named and
defined herein, in San Diego, California. Moreover, for all the reasons stated herein,
plaintiff has suffered injury in fact and has lost money and/or property as a result of
Defendants’ acts, i.e., their practice of engaging in false and misleading advertising
concerning the sudden cessation of the unlimited data plans, as defined above and
omissions concerning those same products, as defined above.

28.  In bringing this action, as to the individual and Class claims, Plaintiff and

all class members either directly or indirectly relied upon, inter alia, the representations,
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advertising and other promotional materials which were prepared and approved by
Defendants and their agents and disseminated on the face of the containers for
Defendants’ products, in Defendants’ product documentation, and/or through local and
national advertising media, including Defendants’ Internet websites, containing the
misrepresentations and/or omissions alleged hereinafter.

29.  Plaintiff also relied upon the representations of Defendants herein, in
researching which product to purchase. Specifically, Plaintiff relied on the
representations of these Defendants concerning the availability of the unlimited data
plan and the flexibility of the plan to be changed according to the data needs of the
individual. Defendants failed to disclose to Plaintiff and the proposed class within any
reasonable time that the availability of the unlimited data plan was ending. Defendants
engaged in a massive marketing campaign to encourage consumers to purchase the
iPad 3G with the promise of data flexibility (i.e., switching between limited and limited
data plans), but hardly advertised the cessation of that unlimited data plan. The
unlimited data plan was offered for only approximately a month before Defendants
terminated the option for the unlimited data plan and Apple and ATTM announced the
cessation of the unlimited data plans only 5 days prior to ceasing the availability of the
plans.

30. Defendant Apple, Inc. ("Apple") is a California corporation which is
licensed to do, and is doing, business in California and throughout the United States.
Its principal offices are located in Cupertino, California. Apple transacts business in
San Diego County, California and at all relevant times designed, manufactured,
promoted, marketed, distributed, and/or sold the products that are the subject of this
complaint, throughout the United States and California. Apple also has significant
contacts with San Diego County, California, and the activities complained of herein
occurred, at least in part, in San Diego County, California.

31. Defendant AT&T Mobility LLC (ATTM) is a Delaware corporation that is

licensed to do, and is doing, business in California and throughout the United States.
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ATTM'’s principal place of business is in Atlanta, Georgia. ATTM transacts business in
California and at all relevant times assisted in the design, promotion, marketing,
provision and/or sale of the iPad 3G. At all relevant times, ATTM was—and still is—the
exclusive provider of the data service plans for the iPad 3G throughout the United
States and in California. ATTM owns, operates and/or maintains a 3G network in this
District and State and has other significant contacts with Apple in this State, including
entering into service and provisioning contracts with Apple that are to be performed in
this State. The activities at issue emanated at least in part from this District and State.

32. Defendants acted in concert with each other in the design of the iPad 3G
and/or the representations made to the Class and, as a result, are each legally
responsible in some manner for the unlawful acts of the other. Pursuant to an
agreement entered into between Apple and ATTM regarding sales of the iPad 3G, the
parties jointly market these computers, ATTM is the exclusive service provider for the
iPad 3G, and ATTM pays a substantial fee to Apple for every iPad sold and activated
on the ATTM network in the United States. Authorized Apple retailers were
Defendants’ agents, ostensible agents, employees, servants, joint ventures, actors in
concert, or aiders and abettors. At all relevant times, Defendants have jointly made,
and continue to make, misrepresentations in the marketing, advertising and/or sale of
both the iPad 3G and 3G service plans.

33.  The true names and capacities of the Defendant sued in this Complaint as
Does 1-10, inclusive, are currently unknown to Plaintiff, who therefore sues such
Defendant by this fictitious name. This Defendant designated herein as a Doe is legally
responsible in some manner for the unlawful acts referred to herein. Plaintiff will seek
leave of the Court to amend this complaint to reflect the true names and capacities of
this Defendant designated herein as Does 1-10 when such identities become known.

34. At all relevant times, Defendants, have made misrepresentations in the

marketing, advertising and/or sale of its iPad 3G described herein.
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CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

35.  Plaintiff brings this action of behalf of himself and all others similarly
situated within the State of California. The proposed class is both ascertainable, and
shares a well-defined community of interest in the questions of law and fact as further
detailed below. Plaintiff seeks to represent a Class composed of and defined as
follows: "All persons in California who purchased an iPad WiFi + 3G between April 30,
2010 and June 7, 2010." Plaintiff reserves the right to amend or modify the Class
description with greater specificity or further division into subclasses or limitation to
particular issues.

36. This action has been brought and may properly be maintained as a class
action because there is a well-defined community of interest in the litigation and the
proposed Class is easily ascertainable.

A. Numerosity

37.  The potential members of the Class as defined are so numerous that
joinder of all the members of the Class is impracticable. While the precise number of
Class Members has not been determined at this time and the facts on which to
calculate that number are presently within the sole control of defendants. Plaintiff
believes that the number of people who have bought the iPad 3G is in the hundreds of
thousands of people. Joinder of all members of the Plaintiff Class is not practicable.

38. Class members are readily ascertainable. Upon information and belief,
Plaintiff alleges Defendants’ sales records, service records, and other records provided
to them by their licensed vendors would provide information as to the number and
location of all Class members.

39. The means available for identifying Class members would be based on a
proposed class announcement, and initial discovery from Defendant Apple’s records to
confirm the sales of the iPad 3G to class members.

40. Since Defendant Apple is likely to have accurate and detailed sales and

service information regarding individuals who would be identified as Class members,
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there is an easy and accurate method available for identifying such members.

B. Commonality

41.  There are questions of law and fact common to the Class that
predominates over any questions affecting only individual Class members. These
common questions of law and fact include, without limitation:

1. Whether Defendant Apple and ATTM engaged in deceptive
business practices when they lured customers to purchase the
more expensive iPad 3G by advertising that customers could
switch to unlimited data plans whenever they wanted to, then
discontinuing the offer; and

2. Whether Apple and ATTM knew prior to the launch of the iPad 3G
that that Apple and ATTM intended to discontinue the availability of
the unlimited data plan and continued to market and advertise the
availability of that unlimited data plan anyway?; and

3. Whether Apple and ATTM failed to disclose that they planned to
discontinue the unlimited data plans for the iPad 3G and whether
such failure violates California’s statutory and common-law
prohibitions against such conduct?

Thus, liability can be proven uniformly throughout the class by facts common to
all members of the proposed class.

C. Typicality

42.  The claims of the named Plaintiff are typical of the claims of the Class.
Plaintiff and all members of the Class sustained damages arising out of and caused by
Defendants’ common course of conduct in violation of laws and regulations that have
the force and effect of law and statutes as alleged.

43.  Plaintiff and named class representative AARON FRIEDMAN purchased
the iPad 3G on May 29, 2010 after having viewed numerous advertisements on the

internet and in the store promising that he had the ability to switch between the limited
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and unlimited data plans for use with the iPad 3G. He did not receive any disclosures
prior to purchase, by Defendant Apple or ATTM explaining that 1) the offer for unlimited
data was subject to change or 2) that Apple and ATTM would be withdrawing the offer
for unlimited data in the near future. These facts are typical among the proposed class.
Further, these facts are essential in proving the claims alleged in this complaint against
Defendants.

D. Adequacy of Representation

44.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the
members of the Class. The Class Representative can adequately represent the class
because his claim is both typical of the class, and the issues are based on facts that are
common between the class representatives and the proposed class. Moreover, the
representative has suffered all of the potential injuries and damages that might arise out
of the conduct complained of herein. As such, the representative can adequately
represent the class because he will bring all potential legal actions and remedies that
would be available to individual members of the class.

45.  Plaintiff has retained attorneys that are competent and experienced in
litigating large class actions, to represent their interests and that of the Class. Plaintiff
and his counsel have the necessary financial resources to adequately and vigorously
litigate this Class Action, and Plaintiff and counsel are aware of the fiduciary
responsibilities to the Class Members and are determined to diligently discharge those
duties by vigorously seeking the maximum possible recovery for the Class.

E. Superiority of Class Action

46. In addition to what has been mentioned above, a class action is a superior
method for resolving the claims herein alleged. One potential remedy to resolve the
common class issues regarding the unavailability of the promised unlimited data plans
for the iPad 3G could be to refund the difference between the iPad 3G and the iPad
without the 3G functionality, which would be approximately $130 per class member.

Individually, this is not a significant amount, and would be likely be limited to a small
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claims action by individual plaintiffs. Such actions are inconceivable, as the costs
associated with proving a prima-facie case would likely exceed the obtainable recovery.

47.  Important public interests will be served by addressing the matter as a
Class Action. The adjudication of individual litigation claims would result in a great
expenditure of court and public resources. However, treating the claims as a class
action will result in a significant savings of these costs. Class Action treatment will allow
those similarly situated persons to litigate their claims in the manner that is most
efficient and economical for the parties and the judicial system.

48.  Also, there is a substantial likelihood of inconsistent verdicts, which would
frustrate the resolution of these legal issues for Defendants, forcing them to comply with
inconsistent legal standards. Moreover, there is no assurance individual claims will
prevent the continued deceptive practices alleged herein. This would frustrate the
purpose of California consumer protection laws.

49.  Considering the actual size of the class, estimated to be in the millions,
and the importance of the issues presented to the State of California (enforcing
consumer protections through deceptive practices within the state), a Class Action is
the desired method for resolving this matter. Moreover, with such common questions of
fact, the Court is in a superior position to fashion a remedy that would uniformly apply to
each, or nearly all, Class members.

50.  Finally, failure to certify a class would literally make it impossible for a
great many of the class members to seek relief, as the costs of litigation would far
exceed the remedy available.

51.  For those who do seek judicial relief, there is a strong likelihood that
separate courts would lead to inconsistent verdicts; working a substantial prejudice on
Defendants, especially, as in this case, where equitable relief is being sought. As such,
a class action presents for fewer management difficulties and provide the benefits of
single adjudication, economy of scale, and comprehensive supervision by a single

court.
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

(Negligence)
(Against all Defendants)

52.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every preceding paragraph as
though fully set forth herein.

53.  Plaintiff asserts this cause of action on behalf of himself and on behalf of
the Class.

54. At all times mentioned, Defendant Apple had a duty to properly
manufacture, design, formulate, compound, test, produce, assemble, inspect, research,
distribute, market, label, package, prepare for use and sell the iPad 3G with an
unlimited data plan. Plaintiff has lost the ability to use the iPad 3G with unlimited data
for a flat rate.

55.  The iPad 3G was negligently marketed, labeled, packaged and distributed
to Plaintiff to use the device for streaming video, streaming audio, internet browsing and
book downloading, all of which consume a great deal of bandwidth. By eliminating the
option for the unlimited data plan, plaintiff will not be able to use the iPad 3G with
unlimited data usage to engage in such bandwidth intensive activities like streaming
videos, as was marketed to him.

56.  As a result of said negligence and carelessness of Defendant Apple,
Plaintiff suffered damages as alleged herein.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

(Negligent Misrepresentation)
(Against all Defendants)
57.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every preceding paragraph as
though fully set forth herein.
58.  Plaintiff asserts this cause of action on behalf of himself and on behalf of
the Class.

59. At all times herein, Plaintiff was unaware of the falsity of the statements
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made by Defendant.

60.  Apple negligently represented that customers who purchased the more
expensive iPad 3G could switch between a prepaid bandwidth and the unlimited data
plans whenever they wanted. This, however, is a misrepresentation, since as of June
7, 2010, just a little over 30 days after Defendants first sold the iPad 3G, Apple and
ATTM ceased the availability of the unlimited data plan.

61. Apple and ATTM also mislead people who purchased the iPad 3G that
they would be able to switch between a limited data plan and an unlimited data plan
that would allow consumers, such as Plaintiff and all others similarly situated, to pay a
flat rate for unlimited 3G access to stream videos, stream audio, download books and
surf the internet.

62. Based on information and belief, at all relevant times, Defendants had no
reasonable grounds for believing that their representations were true and actually knew
that the statements were false, as alleged herein.

63. In making these representations to Plaintiff, Defendants Apple intended to
induce Plaintiff and the Class to purchase the more expensive iPad 3G.

64.  Plaintiff reasonably relied on the statements made by Defendants when
he purchased an iPad 3G. Had Defendant not made these misrepresentations, Plaintiff
would not have suffered damages.

65. As a proximate result of the negligent misrepresentations of Defendants,
Plaintiff purchased an iPad 3G, which cost $130 more than the regular iPad. Plaintiff is
unable to use the iPad 3G to do unlimited streaming videos, streaming audio,
downloading of books and surfing on the internet as a result of the misrepresentations
made by Defendants.

66. WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs and the Class they seek to represent request

relief as described below.
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Fraud and Deceit - Cal. Civ. Code §§1709-1710)

(Against all Defendants)

67.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every preceding paragraph as
though fully set forth herein.

68.  Plaintiff asserts this cause of action on behalf of himself and on behalf of
the Class.

69.  With regard to each false representation alleged in this cause of action, at
all relevant time, Plaintiff was unaware that the representation was false.

70. Based on information and belief, Defendants, and each of them, from the
time that the iPad 3G was first designed, manufactured, marketed and/or distributed
and up to the present, willfully deceived and falsely promised Plaintiff and the Class by
(1) making false and fraudulent misrepresentations to Plaintiff, the Class and the public,
including but not limited to that the unlimited data plans would be available for Plaintiffs
to purchase on a month-to-month basis depending on their needs and to have the
flexibility of switching between limited and unlimited data plans; and (2) concealing from
Plaintiff, the class and the public that Defendants had no intention of continually
providing the flexibility on a month to month basis of switching from limited to unlimited
data plans.

71. Defendant, maintained a nationwide multi-million dollar sales and
marketing campaign iPad 3G and the unlimited data plan availability and willfully
deceived Plaintiff by showing and displaying in commercials, on the internet and on
printed material that by purchasing the iPad 3G the customer would have the ability of
switching between limited and unlimited data plans on a month-to-month basis and that
the customer would have a plan that would provide unlimited access to streaming
videos, streaming audio, book downloads and the internet.

72. Defendants suggested, asserted and/or promised that the by purchasing

the iPad 3G the customer would have the ability of switching between limited and
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unlimited data plans on a month-to-month basis and that the customer would have a
plan that would provide unlimited access to streaming videos, streaming audio, book
downloads and the internet. However, Defendants knew this to be false.

73. Defendants suppressed the fact that they had already began making
internal decisions to discontinue the availability of the unlimited data plan. As alleged
herein, Defendants knew for months that the unlimited access of the iPhones were
already draining the network. Defendants knew that once they launched the iPhone 4
on June 7, 2010, that there would be another tremendous drain on the 3G network and
that they could not sustain unlimited data access for all of the iPhones and the new
iPad 3G. Yet, Defendants marketed, labeled, packaged and distributed the iPad 3G for
use with an unlimited data network that defendants had no intention of continuing.

74. Based on information and belief, when Defendants made the foregoing
misrepresentations, they knew them to be false and/or had no reasonable basis for
believing them to be true.

75.  The misrepresentations and concealment by Defendants were made and
conducted with the intent to willfully induce Plaintiff and the Class to purchase the iPad
3G.

76. In reliance on the false, fraudulent and/or willful misrepresentation and
concealment by the Defendants, and each of them, Plaintiff was induced to and did
purchase an iPad 3G. Plaintiff reasonably relied on the representations of Apple and
ATTM. Had Defendants not made these misrepresentations, Plaintiff would not have
suffered damages.

77.  Upon information and belief, Defendants acts were done willfully,
maliciously, with fraudulent intent and with deliberate disregard of the rights of Plaintiff
and the Class.

78.  WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs and the Class they seek to represent request

relief as described below.
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Unlawful, Unfair and Deceptive Business Practices in Violation of
California Business & Professions Code §17200, et seq.)
(Against all Defendants)

79.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every preceding paragraph as
though fully set forth herein.

80. Plaintiff asserts this cause of action on behalf of himself and on behalf of
the Class.

81.  The Unfair Business Practices Act defines unfair business competition to
include any "unfair,” "unlawful," or "fraudulent” business act or practice. California
Business and Professions Code §17200 et seq. The Act also provides for injunctive
relief and restitution for violations.

82. Defendant Apple violated, and continues to violate, California Business
and Professions Code §17200 et seq., by misrepresenting availability of their unlimited
data network, as alleged herein.

83. Defendant AT&T violated, and continues to violate California Business
and Professions Code §17200 et seq., by misrepresenting that by purchasing the iPad
3G the customer would have the ability of switching between limited and unlimited data
plans on a month-to-month basis and that the customer would have a plan that would
provide unlimited access to streaming videos, streaming audio, book downloads and
the internet.

84. By engaging in the above described acts and practices, Defendants Apple
and ATTM have committed one or more acts of unfair competition within the meaning
of California Business and Professions Code §17200 et seq.

85. Defendants’ acts and practices as described herein have deceived and/or
are likely to deceive members of the public.

86. The acts and practices of Apple are also unlawful because they violate

one or more of the following: Negligence, Fraud and Deceit, Negligent
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Misrepresentation, and California Business & Professions Code §17500, as described
herein.

87.  As discussed above, Plaintiff and the members of the Class purchased
one of these iPad 3Gs. Plaintiff is informed and believes and, based upon such
information and belief, allege that Apple’s authorized retailers/resellers were Apple's
agents, ostensible agents, employees, servants, joint ventures, actors in concert, aiders
and abettors and co-conspirators.

88. In this regard, the funds paid by Plaintiff and the members of the Class to
Apple’s retailers/resellers were, in fact, paid directly to Apple. Plaintiff is informed and
believes and, based upon such information and beliefs, alleges that Apple and ATTM
profited enormously through falsely representing the availability of the unlimited data
plans through its authorized retailers/resellers. Apple revenues are thus directly
traceable to millions of dollars paid out by Plaintiff and the members of the Class for the
iPad 3G and the limited data plans that customers are now forced to purchase.

89. Unless Defendant Apple and ATTM is enjoined from continuing to engage
in the unlawful, unfair, fraudulent, untrue, and deceptive business acts and practices as
described herein, Plaintiff and the Class members residing within California will
continue to be damaged by Apple’s unfair competition. Apple and ATTM should be
enjoined from only selling limited data plans after luring customers to purchase the iPad
3G with the promise of being able to switch between limited and unlimited data plans.

90. Apple, through their acts of unfair competition, has acquired money from
members of the proposed Class. Thus, Plaintiff and the members of the Class request
this Court restore this money to them and enjoin Apple and ATTM from continuing to
violate California Business and Professions Code §17200 et seq., as discussed above.

91.  Such conduct is ongoing and continues to this date. Plaintiff and the

Class members are therefore entitled to relief described below.
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(False and Misleading Advertising in Violation of
California Business & Professions Code §17500, et seq.)
(Against all Defendants)

92. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every preceding paragraph as
though fully set forth herein.

93. Plaintiff asserts this cause of action on behalf of himself and on behalf of
the Class.

94. Defendant Apple’s acts and practices as described herein have deceived
and/or are likely to deceive members of the public. Apple’s use of direct-mail to
advertise, including its website on the Internet, to call attention to, or give publicity to
Apple iPad 3G and that by purchasing the iPad 3G the customer would have the ability
of switching between limited and unlimited data plans on a month-to-month basis and
that the customer would have a plan that would provide unlimited access to streaming
videos, streaming audio, book downloads and the internet and its use to make and
receive phone calls. However, Defendants discontinued the availability of the unlimited
data plan. Defendants marketed the unlimited data plan for approximately 4 months,
yet only offered the unlimited data plan for just over 30 days.

95. Thus, by its actions, Apple are disseminating advertising concerning its
products and services, which by its very nature is unfair, deceptive, untrue, or
misleading within the meaning of California Business & Professions Code §17500, et.
seq. Such advertisements are likely to deceive, and continue to deceive, the
consuming public.

96. In making and disseminating the statements alleged herein, Apple knew
or should have known that the statements were untrue and misleading, and action in
violation of California Business & Professions Code §17500, et. seq.

97. The misrepresentations and non-disclosures by Apple and ATTM of the

material facts detailed above constitute false and misleading advertising and therefore
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constitute a violation of California Business & Professions Code §17500, et. seq.

98. As a direct and proximate result of Apple’s wrongful conduct, Plaintiff and
the members of the Class request that this Court cause Apple to restore this money to
them,

99.  Such conduct is ongoing and continues to this date. Plaintiff and the
Class are therefore entitled to the relief described below.

RELIEF REQUESTED
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and on behalf of the members of

the Class defined herein, as applicable, pray for judgment and relief on all Causes of
Action as follows:

1. An order certifying this case as a class action and appointing Plaintiff and
their counsel to represent the Class;

2. For a temporary, preliminary and/or permanent order for injunctive relief
enjoining Defendants from pursuing the policies, acts and practices complained of
herein;

3. For a temporary, preliminary and/or permanent order for injunctive relief
requiring Defendants to immediately reinstate the unlimited data plans for the iPad 3G
and notifying members of the proposed Class as to the presence of potential
restitutionary relief;

4. As to the third cause of action, an award of exemplary and/or punitive
damages as appropriate to deter and punish Defendants for their unfair and deceptive
business practices, their conspiracy, as well as for their other fraudulent and deceitful
conduct;

5. For an order requiring disgorgement of Defendants’ ill-gotten gains and to
pay restitution to Plaintiffs and all members of the Class all funds acquired by means of
any act or practice declared by this Court to be an unlawful, fraudulent or unfair
business act or practice, a violation of laws, statutes or regulations, or constituting

unfair competition;
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Reasonable attorneys’ fees;
Costs of this suit;

Pre- and post-judgment interest; and

© o N O

Such other and further relief as the Court may deem necessary or

appropriate.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff and the Class demand a trial by jury.

DATED: November 22, 2010 CASEY, GERRY, SCHENK,
FRANCAVILLA, BLATT & PENFIELD LLP

By: s/IGAYLE M. BLATT
Attorneys for Plaintiff Aaron Friedman,
on behalf of himself and all others similarly
situated
gmb@cglaw.com

DATED: November 22, 2010 HIDEN, ROTT & OERTLE, LLP

By:sIMICHAEL IAN ROTT

DAVID V. HIDEN

ERIC M. OVERHOLT

Attorneys for Plaintiff, on behalf of himself
and all others similarly situated
mroti@hrolip.com

dhiden@hrollp.com

eoverholt@hrolip.com
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